
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

 

INLAND WETLANDS AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025, 7:00 P.M. 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER   
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items):  
III. PUBLIC HEARING(S): None 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: None 
V. NEW BUSINESS:  

1. IW202419 – Abdulsalam Alsaleh and Zak Smith, owner/ Calito Development Group, LLC, 
applicant, request for modification to a permit to conduct regulated activity to construct a 
driveway crossing, parking lot, wetlands mitigation area, stormwater basin, and associated site 
improvements for a retail store on property to be subdivided on the west side of West Road 
across the street from 175 West Road. Property identified as Assessor Parcel Number 046-
003-0002. 

2. Request for positive referral to the Planning & Zoning Commission on a resubdivision to create 
one new 2.37+/- acre lot (S202502) pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. 8-26(e) at 20 Punkin Drive, 
APN 120-026-0004. 

3. IW202503 – Town of Ellington, owner/applicant, notification of permitted and nonregulated uses 
to repair the roadway accessing the State Forest and install a gravel parking area at 79 Kibbe 
Road, APN 142-002-0000. 

4. Request to delegate authority to the Wetlands Agent – Permit to conduct regulated activity for 
excavation and grading associated with an earth excavation operation at 90 Sadds Mill Road, 
APN 079-002-0000. 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
1. Approval of March 17, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Election of Officers. 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

VII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for May 12, 2025. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Inland Wetlands Agency. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting via link  Join Zoom Meeting by phone:   
Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82749024375   +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)    
Meeting ID: 827 4902 4375                 Meeting ID: 827 4902 4375 
Passcode: 495735       Passcode: 495735 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
  TEL. (860) 870-3120   TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE   FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82749024375
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


 
 RE:  Property ID:  046 003 0002, West Road 
 Requested Modification to IW202419  

Calito Development Group, Applicant 
 

 

Summary of Changes 
 

The applicant is seeking a modification to the previously approved wetlands permit to address comments 
from the State of Connecticut that resulted from their review of the site plan for an Encroachment Permit.    

The applicant previously obtained a wetlands permit because the proposed driveway has to cross an existing 
drainage ditch in order to conform to the Town of Ellington’s Access Concept Plan for Route 83.  To cross 
the drainage ditch, two 36” RCP culverts were proposed to be installed that would drain to a newly created 
wetlands mitigation area on the upstream side of the culverts, just to the west of West Road (CT Route #83).   
These activities (site grading, construction of the proposed parking lot/drive aisles, and construction of the 
stormwater basin/stormwater swale) would result in impacts to the upland review area and wetlands.   

However, the State of Connecticut objected to the location of the wetlands mitigation area and is requiring 
that the applicant extend the two existing drainage pipes so that they cross both the drainage ditch and the 
new driveway.  The extended culvert would drain into a riprap scour hole, allowing the water to pool in the 
vicinity of a wetlands mitigation area proposed to be created on the downstream side within the upland review 
area, southwest of the proposed building.  The increased activity within the upland review area is due to the 
relocation of the mitigation area, as well as its construction.  The  existing drainage ditch along the westerly 
edge of West Road would be filled in to match the grade of the proposed driveway.   

 

These changes will result in the following impacts: 

Upland Review Area Activity:  increase from 34,303 sq. ft. to 40,891 sq. ft. (an increase of 6,588 sq. ft.) 

The permanent upland review area activity would be 13,913 sq. ft.  This includes the proposed impervious 
area of the parking lot and drive aisles. The remaining area of 26,978 sq. ft. would be temporarily impacted as 
it will be lawn space or wetlands mitigation area post construction. 
 

Wetlands Activity:  remains at 2,148 sq. ft. (no change) 

 
 
 













































24
'-3

"30
'-2

"

4'
-0

"

X1 X1X2A X2AX3X11

X13 X7X13X7

X5

X2B

X2B

X2X13

X2B X9 X2B X9

X13

INSULATED ENTRY DOORS

SIGNAGE TBD BY
TENANT

APPLIED MANSARD
ROOF TYP.

DECORATIVE WINDOW
PANELS  TYP.

COPULA

X11 X11

GOOSENECK LIGHTING

X2C

X2D

X2C X2C X2C

X2A X2A

X2B X2B X2B X2B X2B

X2A X2A X2A

X2B X2C X2D

X2B

X2B X2B X2B X2B X2B X2B X2B

X5

X2B

X2B

X2D

X2B

X14

WD TRELLIS

X2BX9X2BX9 X11X11

21
'-1

1"

15
'-6

"

X2

X4 X7 X4X7 X7

X2B

X6

X2B

30
'-2

"

X2

X2X13

X6 X6 X6 X6X6X6

X7

X10

RTU TYP.

METAL WALL
PANEL

COPULA

X10X2

30
'-2

"

X1X2CX11

X13 X7

X2X13

10
'-1

"

X5X2B

X2B X9 X2B X9 X2B X9X2b

COPULA

X2CX2B X2CX2B

X5

X2B

X2B

X2D

X2B

X2A X2A X2A X2A X1

X2B

X2D

X2B X2B X2B X2B X2B

WD TRELLIS

30
'-2

"

X2 X10

10
'-1

"

COPULA

X5

X2B

X2B

X2D

X2B

X1 X2C X11

X13X7

X2 X13

X5 X2B

X2BX9X2BX9X2BX9 X2b

X2C X2BX2C X2B

X2AX2AX2AX2AX1

X2B

X2D

X2BX2BX2BX2BX2B

WD TRELLIS

STANDARD METAL
PANEL

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

COLOR: POLAR
WHITE

MATERIAL/ MFG.TAG COLOR/ NO. NOTES

X2

X3

X4

X1

STANDARD ENTRY
DOORS

COLOR: DARK
BRONZE

PRE-FINISHED

STANDARD METAL
ROOF PANEL

COLOR:
GALVALUME

FINISH BY PEMB

X5

X6 MTL GUTTERS,
DOWNSPOUTS

FINISH BY PEMB

X7 MTL COPING

X8

COLOR: WHITE FINISH BY PEMB

NOT USED

X9

INS DOOR &
FRAME

COLOR: TO
MATCH

PAINTED
X2

X10

X11 MTL AWNING COLOR: DARK
BRONZE

FINISH BY PEMB

SPANDREL
STOREFRONT

X2A

COLOR: N/A N/A

HARDIE TRIM COLOR: ARCTIC
WHITEX2B

X12 NOT USED N/A N/A

COLOR: DARK
BRONZE

LT GREY FILM

VERTICAL BATTON
HARDIE BOARD

COLOR: ARCTIC
WHITE

PRE-FINISHED
X2C

PRE-FINISHED

X13 ARCH ASPHALT
SHINGLES

COLOR:
WEATHERED WOOD

GAF TIMBERLINE

COLOR: POLAR
WHITE

MTL GUTTERS,
DOWNSPOUTS

FINISH BY PEMBCOLOR: POLAR
WHITE

CULTURED STONE
WAINSCOT

DEL-MAR
ANCIENT VILLA
LEDGESTONE

COLOR: PALISADES

HARDIE BOARD COLOR: ARCTIC
WHITE

PRE-FINISHED

FINISH BY PEMB

X2D
FINISHED PLWD COLOR: LT BROWN

STAIN
PRE-FINISHED
WOOD GRAIN

X14 WOOD TRELLIS COLOR: STAINED
TO MATCH

6" X 6" WD POST
FEILD FABRIACTEDX2D

Drawn by: BKA # Date:

BKA Architects, Inc.
Quincy + Tampa
www.bkaarchitects.com01/10/2025222115DSG

Conceptual Elevations
Prepared ForWest Rd. (Rt 82)  Ellington, CT

Ellington, CT  Retail Shell

SCALE: 1/8"-1'-0"
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (West Rd)1

SCALE: 1/8"-1'-0"
PROPOSED RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION 3

SCALE: 1/8"-1'-0"
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 2

SCALE: 1/8"-1'-0"
PROPOSED LEFT SIDE ELEVATION 4



PROP. STROMWATER
BASIN

WEST ROAD (CT ROUTE 83)

PROPOSED

10,640 sq. ft.
RETAIL USE

140.0'

76.0'
76.0'

140.0'

8,845 sq. ft. SALES AREA

ONE-STORY BUILDING
TOTAL FOOTPRINT AREA=

(5)CL
(5)IV
(6)VD

(1)AR

(5)PJM
(5)IG

(5)ADW

(5)PJM
(5)IG
(5)ADW

(5)PO
(5)ADW
(5)PO

RIVER ROCK (TYP.)

NEW ENGLAND ROADSIDE
MATRIX UPLAND MIX (TYP.)

NEW ENGLAND WETMIX (TYP.)
NEW ENGLAND EROSION
CONTROL/RESTORATION
MIX (TYP.)

LAWN AREA (TYP.)

(1)AR

(1)QR

(4)JH
(4)PA
(1)BN
(3)MG

(4)JH
(4)PA
(1)BN
(3)MG

(5)JH
(5)PA
(1)BN
(3)MG

5'

(1)AR

(1)QR

(1)QR

(5)MG

WETLAND
MITIGATION AREA #1

WETLAND
MITIGATION AREA #2

(4) BN
(2) BN

(6) UA

(5) GB

(1) AR

OVERSTORY TREE

SHRUBS & GROUNDCOVER

LAWN

NEW ENGLAND ROADSIDE MATRIX
UPLAND MIX

NEW ENGLAND EROSION
CONTROL/RESTORATION NO MOW MIX

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

ADJOINING LOT LINE

NEW ENGLAND WETMIX

RIVER ROCK

LIMIT OF WETLANDS

100 YEAR FLOOD HAZARD AREA

NEW ENGLAND CONSERVATION /
WILDLIFE MIX

WETLAND MITIGATION PLANTINGS

W. HARTFORD, CT

Sheet Title: Sheet #:

Project:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Approved By:

Project #:

Plan Date:

Scale:

PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT

WEST ROAD
ELLINGTON, CT

Graphic Scale:

Rev. #: Date Description

KMS

24112401

ENGINEERING
T: (203) 880-5455    F: (203) 880-9695

Mary Blackburn, P.L.A.
CT 1499

MONROE, CT NORWOOD, MA
SOLLIENGINEERING.COM

1 12/16/2024 Response To Comments

40 0 40 80

JJS

MFB

09/18/24

1" = 40'

LANDSCAPE
PLAN 2.61

1. ALL PLANTING MIXES SHALL BE PREPARED PRIOR TO
DELIVERY TO SITE.

2. PLANTING MIX FOR TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE AS
FOLLOWS:

3 PARTS SCREED TOPSOIL
1 PART CLEAN WASHED COARSE SAND
1 PART PEAT HUMUS
5 LBS. SUPER PHOSPHATE PER CUBIC YARD OF MIX

3. MYCORRHIZAL INNCOULANT TO BE MYCOR TREE SAVER
TRANSPLANT BY PLANT HEALTH CARE, INC. (1-800-421-9051) OR
APPROVED EQUAL.

4. TERRASORB AVAILABLE FROM PLANT HEALTH CARE, INC. OR
APPROVED EQUAL

5. SUBMIT CERTIFICATION OF PLANTING MIX FOR TREES AND
SHRUBS FROM SOIL DISTRIBUTOR.

6. TOPSOIL MIX SHALL INCLUDE:
3 PARTS SCREENED TOPSOIL
1 PART SAND
1 PART HUMUS
5 LBS. SUPER PHOSPHATE PER CU. YD. OF MIX

7. TOPSOIL:

A. PROVIDE A NATURAL, FERTILE, FRIABLE, NATURAL LOAM
SURFACE SOIL CAPABLE OF SUSTAINING VIGOROUS PLANT
GROWTH. OF UNIFORM COMPOSITION THROUGHOUT AND
WITHOUT ADMIXTURES OF SUBSOIL, AND FREE OF STONES,
LUMPS, PLANTS, ROOTS, STICKS OR OTHER EXTRANEOUS
MATTER.

B. TOPSOIL SHALL CONTAIN NOT LESS THAN 4% NOR MORE
THAN 20% ORGANIC MATTER AS DETERMINED BY THE WET
COMBUSTION METHOD.

C. MECHANICAL ANALYSIS

SCREEN SIZE % BY WEIGHT PASSING

1" 100

1/4" 97 - 100

NO. 200 20 - 65

D. CONTRACTORS SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TESTING
AND ANALYSIS OF EXISTING AND IMPORTED SOILS.
FURNISH A SOIL ANALYSIS MADE BY A QUALIFIED
INDEPENDENT SOIL-TESTING AGENCY STATING
PERCENTAGES OF ORGANIC MATTER, INORGANIC MATTER
(SILT, CLAY, AND SAND), DELETERIOUS MATERIAL, PH, AND
MINERAL AND PLANT-NUTRIENT CONTENT OF TOPSOIL.

E. REPORT SUITABILITY OF TOPSOIL FOR LAWN AND SHRUB
PLANTING GROWTH.  RECOMMEND QUANTITIES OF
NITROGEN, PHOSPHORUS, AND POTASH NUTRIENT AND ANY
LIMESTONE, ALUMINUM SULFATE, OR OTHER SOIL
AMENDMENTS TO BE ADDED TO PRODUCE A SATISFACTORY
TOPSOIL.

PLANTING SOIL NOTES

GENERAL NOTES
1. ALL SITE WORK TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

ALL PERMITS, APPROVALS AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVALS
ISSUED BY THE TOWN OF ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT AND
THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR THIS PROJECT.

2. EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS AND BOUNDARY INFORMATION
TAKEN FROM A PLAN TITLED  "ZONING IMPROVEMENT
LOCATION SURVEY-PROPOSED 175 WEST ROAD", SCALE
1"=40', PREPARED BY HALLSEY, PEARSON, AND CASSIDY.

1. BE AWARE OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION OR PLANTING OPERATIONS. USE CARE TO
PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES FROM DAMAGE, CONTACT "CALL BEFORE YOU DIG" PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.

2. ALL PLANTINGS ARE TO BE INSTALLED BY A QUALIFIED LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.
3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO CARRY WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND COMPREHENSIVE

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. CERTIFICATES WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO SIGNING CONTRACTS.
4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR JOBSITE SAFETY. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A SAFE JOBSITE AT ALL TIMES.
5. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE FAMILIAR WITH THE SITE TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, GRADES AND EXISTING CONDITIONS.

REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO LANDSCAPE DESIGNER.
6. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS AND LICENSES REQUIRED FOR COMPLETING WORK.
7. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DISPOSAL OF ALL EXCAVATED SOIL, BRUSH AND DEBRIS OFF-SITE IN A SAFE

AND LEGAL MANNER.
8. NOTIFY OWNER OR LANDSCAPE DESIGNER 72 HOURS MINIMUM IN ADVANCE OF STARTING PLANTING OPERATIONS.

RECEIVE APPROVAL FOR LAYOUT OF ALL BED LINES AND MATERIAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
9. PROTECT EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN FROM DAMAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION. IT IS THE INTENT OF THIS

CONTRACT TO AVOID ANY DISTURBANCE TO EXISTING VEGETATION ON THE SITE OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFICALLY
DESIGNATED FOR REMOVAL. ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE MADE IN THE FIELD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE LANDSCAPE
DESIGNER.

10. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING ALL PLANTING, SEEDING AND TREE WORK WITH OTHER TRADES.
RESPECT OTHER TRADES WORK AT ALL TIMES.

11. CONTRACTOR IS TO EXERCISE EXTREME CARE DURING THE COURSE OF DEMOLITION AND REMOVALS ANY DAMAGE TO
EXISTING FACILITIES, UTILITIES OR TREES TO REMAIN SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO
REPLACE IN KIND.

12. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING ALL AREAS DAMAGED TO PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS AS A RESULT OF
PLANTING OPERATIONS TO OWNERS AND/OR LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS APPROVAL.

13. VEGETATION TO BE REMOVED, NOT INDICATED ON PLAN, SHALL BE TAGGED IN FIELD BY LANDSCAPE DESIGNER.
14. THE LANDSCAPE DESIGNER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT INFERIOR PLANT MATERIALS AND SUBSTITUTIONS. THE

LANDSCAPE DESIGNER IS WILLING TO MAKE TWO TRIPS TO SUPPLIERS TO TAG, REVIEW AND APPROVE MATERIALS.
PREVIOUSLY UNAPPROVED MATERIALS MAY BE REJECTED AT THE SITE. MINIMALLY, ALL MATERIALS WILL CONFORM TO
THE "AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI Z60.1 - 2004) OF THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN.

15. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GUARANTEED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO BE IN GOOD, HEALTHY AND FLOURISHING
CONDITION FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE, AS SOON
AS WEATHER AND SEASONAL CONDITIONS PERMIT, ALL DEAD PLANTS AND ALL PLANTS NOT IN A VIGOROUS, THRIVING
CONDITION, AS DETERMINED BY THE LANDSCAPE DESIGNER DURING, AND AT THE END OF THE GUARANTEE PERIOD.
WARRANTY REPLACEMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT NO COST TO THE OWNER AND INCLUDE MATERIALS AND LABOR.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REPAIR OF ANY DAMAGE INCURRED DURING REPLACEMENT OF WARRANTY
MATERIALS.

16. WHEN THERE IS A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN PLANT QUANTITIES SHOWN ON THE PLANT LIST & THE PLAN, USE THE
QUANTITIES FROM THE PLAN.

17. PERENNIALS, GROUNDCOVERS & GRASSES TO BE FIELD LOCATED BY LANDSCAPE DESIGNER. COORDINATE TO NOTIFY
LANDSCAPE DESIGNER AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF EXPECTED INSTALLATION DATE. ON THAT DATE ALL BEDS
SHALL BE PREPARED & ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE ON SITE.

18. PROVIDE A MINIMUM 6" TOPSOIL FOR ALL DISTURBED AREAS. SUBMIT SAMPLE OF TOPSOIL AND SOIL TEST RESULTS FOR
LANDSCAPE DESIGNER APPROVAL PRIOR TO DELIVERING TO SITE.

19. MULCH ALL BEDS SHOWN AS CONTINUOUS WITH A 3" MINIMUM OF DOUBLE SHREDDED CEDAR BARK MULCH. SAMPLE TO
BE SUBMITTED TO LANDSCAPE DESIGNER FOR APPROVAL.

20. ALL PLANT MATERIALS TO BE SOURCED FROM LOCALLY GROWN GROWERS.

PLANTING NOTES

SHRUB PLANTING
SCALE: NTS

MULCH

NOTE
1. IN AREAS OF MASS PLANTING, CONTINUOUSLY EXCAVATE AND MULCH ENTIRE BED.
2. VERIFY THAT ALL PLANT PITS ARE FREE DRAINING. NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IF PITS ARE

NOT FREE DRAINING.
3. PRUNE, DEAD, DEFORMED, OR BROKEN BRANCHES.

3" SOIL SAUCER
(TYP.)

SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
BELOW BALL (TYP)

SET TOP OF ROOT BALL
2" ABOVE FINISHED

GRADE
REMOVE ALL BURLAP

& WIRE FROM 1/3 OF
ROOT BALL

PLANTING
MIXTURE, SEE

PLANTING SOIL
NOTES

CONTAINER GROWN

2 x
BALL

DIAMETER

2 x
BALL

DIAMETER

6"
MIN. 6"

MIN.

BALLED AND
BURLAPPED

TOPSOIL
SUBSOIL

FINISH GRADE REMOVE CONTAINER &
LIGHTLY SCARIFY
ROOTS AND SOIL
BEFORE PLANTING

SCARIFY GLAZED
SIDES OR
HARDENED
SURFACE IF PITS
ARE DUG WITH
AUGERING
DEVICE

DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING
SCALE: NTS

PRUNING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPROVED HORTICULTURAL STANDARDS IN

ORDER TO PRESERVE THE NATURAL FORM OF
THE SPECIFIC PLANTS. IF APPLICABLE &

APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT,
ONE-FOURTH TO ONE-THIRD OF THE WOOD
SHALL BE REMOVED BY THINNING OUT TO

BALANCE ROOT LOSS DUE TO
TRANSPLANTING.

REMOVE ALL BURLAP AND
WIRE BASKETS FROM TOP 1/3

OF ROOT BALL

3" SOIL SAUCER
TYP. FINISH

GRADE

SET TOP OF ROOT
BALL 2" TO 4"
ABOVE FINISH
GRADE

24" (MIN.)

2 x BALL DIA.

2" DEPTH MULCH
(SEE NOTES)

DO NOT PLACE
MULCH AROUND
ROOT FLARE

MULCH

TOPSOIL
SUBSOIL

PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE,
SEE PLANTING SOIL NOTE.

EACH TREE TO BE
PROVIDED A MINIMUM OF

12 C.F. OF LOAM
INCORPORATED INTO SOIL

PLANTING MIXTURE

PLANTING SCHEDULE

WETLAND MITIGATION PLANTING SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" D.I. WAT. MAIN



Landmark   Surveys,,,   LLC   

Land Boundary Consultants 
62 Lower Butcher Road, Ellington, CT 06029 

Phone & Fax: 860-875-8204 
Email: rachel@landmarksurveys.com 

 
 
 
March 31, 2025 
 
Town of Ellington 
Inland Wetlands Agency 
 
Re: Resubdivision 20 Punkin Drive 
 
Dear Agency, 
 
At the request of the applicant, Philip & Michelle Bahler, I hereby request a positive referral from the 
Inland Wetland Agency to the Planning & Zoning Commission for the proposed Resubdivision Plan for 
Philip Bahler 20 Punkin Drive dated 3/25/2025.   
 
The resubdivision plans proposed one new building lot and all proposed construction activities are located 
outside the wetlands and the 100’ upland review area.   
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Rachel Dearborn L.S. 
 









STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 

INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 

Department of Public Works 
21 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
TEL 860-870-3140 FAX 860-870-3147 

www.ellington-ct.gov 

Memo 
To: John Colonese, Asst. Town Planner  
From: Tom Modzelewski, Director of Public Works  
cc: Lisa Houlihan, Town Planner 
      Lori Spielman, First Selectman 
      Matt Reed, Town Administrator 

       

Date: 4-15-2025  
Re: Kibbe Rd State Forest Access Road Improvements  

Dear John,  

The Department of Public Works has been instructed by the First Selectman to improve the accessibility and 
condition of the abandoned State Forest road at the North end of Kibbe Rd.  

The prior owner hired a company to harvest the property for quality logs and in doing so the contractor placed 
logs all within the abandoned roadway. Additionally, after years of no maintenance, the old roadbed has washed 
out and become quite rutted.  

It is our goal to establish a safe, passable roadway within the area of the previous road. Additionally, we plan to 
install a gravel parking area for users of the facility to safely park and enjoy what the area has to offer. Please 
see the attached depictions of said plan and follow up with any questions or concerns.  
 
Respectfully, 

 
Tom Modzelewski 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2 

                    
 

 















Ellington Inland Wetland Agency 
2025_03-17 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
INLAND WETLANDS AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, MARCH 17, 2025, 7:00 P.M.  
 

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING  

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 
PRESENT: Chairman Jean Burns (via Zoom), Vice Chairman Katherine Heminway, Regular members 

Ken Braga, Landon Barlow (via Zoom, left meeting at 7:44 pm), and Alternate Subhra Roy  
 
ABSENT:    Regular members Steve Hoffman, Hocine Baouche, and Jon Kaczmarek 
 
STAFF 
PRESENT:  John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/Wetland Enforcement Officer and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk (via Zoom) 
  
I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Jean Burns called the Ellington Inland Wetlands Agency meeting to 

order at 7:00 pm. 
 
Chairman Jean Burns introduced Subhra Roy as a new member of the commission. Subhra 
mentioned serving on the Zoning Board of Appeals for the past 4 years and is looking forward to 
serving on the Inland Wetland Agency. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items): None 
 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

1. IW202502 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant request for a permit to conduct regulated 
activity to construct a single-family home and associated improvements at 37 Wendell Road, APN 
168-019-0000. 

 
Time: 7:04 pm 
Seated: Burns, Heminway, Braga, Barlow and Roy  
 
Stephen Williams, 22 Rudnansky Lane, Tolland, CT, Mark Peterson, Gardner & Peterson Assoc, 
LLC, 178 Hartford Turnpike, Tolland, CT, George Logan, REMA Ecological Services, LLC, 43 
Blue Ridge Drive, Vernon, CT, George and Michael Schober, Schober & Schober, PC, 139 
Hazard Ave, Bldg. 2, Suite 7, Enfield, CT were present to represent the application. 
 
Attorney George Schober submitted August 12, 2024, and September 23, 2024, Inland Wetland 
Agency meeting minutes, the Improvement Location Survey map last revision of 9-13-2024, and 
the denial letter dated October 1, 2024, for the record. Attorney Schober introduced Mark 
Peterson who will review the changes to the plan since the denial. 
 

 

 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 

INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120       TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


Ellington Inland Wetland Agency 
2025_03-17 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Mark Peterson explained the parcel is located on the corner of Wendell Road and Pine Street in 
a residential zone. Mark stated a topography and boundary survey has been completed, showing 
the wetlands delineations provided by George Logan, and existing drainage, which runs north to 
south on the parcel. Mark showed the proposed location of the house, the driveway, proposed 
well, sewer, and utilities on the map. The owner received well location approval from the North 
Central District Health Department (NCDHD) and will work with the Water Pollution Control 
Authority for the sewer installation. Mark showed the location of the proposed stockpile area, 
haybales, and silt fence, and the anti-tracking pad during the construction phase and noted the 
seeding schedule is on page 2 of the plan set. Mark stated there is zero disturbance to the 
wetlands, and 3,470 sf of disturbance is proposed within the 100’ upland review area.  
 
George Logan noted the field delineations were performed in 2024, and the wetland soil types 
are poorly drained. George showed the flagged wetland area and noted that functions and values 
are limited. George stated there is a 40-foot in length intermittent watercourse that crosses the 
southern corner of the site, originating at a culvert under Wendell Road and flowing to a culvert 
under Pine Street. George stated the silt fence and haybales are to be installed to protect the 
wetlands during construction for double protection. George stated the hydrology of the wetlands 
will be maintained and in his professional opinion the proposed activity does not have an adverse 
impact on the water quality.    
 
Commissioner Braga asked about landscaping between the house and the flagged wetlands, 
Stephen Williams noted there will be grass seed planted within the area. Commissioner 
Heminway asked about applying wetlands seed, George Logan noted any exposed dirt would be 
grass seed. Commissioner Barlow asked if the any mitigation and removal of the Japanese 
Knotweed was part of this application and George responded that it was not. 
 
David Fredericks, 13 Pine Street, asked if a basement would be part of the dwelling, stating there 
is ledge on the parcel. David explained there is ledge and blasting that has occurred within the 
neighborhood, and noted a gravity fed well upstream of the property. Mark Peterson noted there 
is a proposed well and the dwelling will have a crawl space rather than a basement with minimal 
excavation. Mark showed the proposed grading of the site.  David asked again about the gravity 
fed well. George Logan stated if there is a gravity fed well upstream it would be offsite and would 
have no effect on 37 Wendell Road as the water will continue to flow as it does. 
 
Maura Freckleton, 33 Pine Street, mentioned North Central District Health Department’s plan 
approval for the well location approved on March 10, 2025. Maura’s concern is the 75’ radius from 
the proposed sewer to her well. Mark Peterson spoke with the North Central District Health 
Department (NCDHD) and verified the separation distances to the well are sufficient and noted 
the sewer pump will be in a sealed concrete pit. Chairman Burns stated that NCDHD approval 
has six conditions noted.  
 
Dave Freckleton, 33 Pine Street asked about the well setback from the road. John Colonese 
explained that the NCDHD approval was present and questions regarding well setbacks should 
be directed to the health department. George Logan explained that the hydrology of the well is 
separate from the wetlands. 
 
Maura Freckleton, 33 Pine Street, noted concerns regarding building setback requirements. John 
Colonese stated that should the wetlands permit be approved; the Zoning Board of Approvals will 
need to approve a variance for the proposed building setbacks that do not comply with regulations 
or prior variance.   
 
Vice Chairman Heminway stated more support for approval of the application now that all activity 
on the site would be outside of the wetland delineations. John Colonese reviewed the possible 
conditions of approval with the agency and application. Vice Chairman Heminway requested that 



Ellington Inland Wetland Agency 
2025_03-17 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 
 

the haybales be extended along the proposed silt fence between the well and the wetlands. 
Chairman Burns requested the NCDHD approval to be added to the conditions. 
 
MOVED (BRAGA) SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO MAKE 
DETERMINATION OF A NON-SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITY FOR IW202502. 
 
Stephen Williams noted his parents purchased the parcel over 72 years ago and would like to do 
something with the property besides paying taxes.  

 
 MOVED (BRAGA) SECONDED (HEWINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 

PUBLIC HEARING FOR IW202502 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant request for a permit 
to conduct regulated activity to construct a single-family home and associated improvements at 
37 Wendell Road, APN 168-019-0000. 

 
 MOVE (HEMINWAY) SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 

WITH CONDITIONS FOR IW202502 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant request for a permit 
to conduct regulated activity to construct a single-family home and associated improvements at 
37 Wendell Road, APN 168-019-0000. 

 
 Conditions of approval: 
 

1. Haybales shall be extended to the west behind the proposed silt fence line. 
2. Proposed silt fence and haybales shall be staked by a licensed land surveyor prior to activity.   
3. Erosion control measures shall be installed then inspected by the wetland agent prior to 

construction of the site and remain operational until the site is stabilized. 
4. A split-rail fence shall be installed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy along the 

proposed haybale line as shown on the plan submitted with the application described as 
Improvement Location Survey Permit Plan dated 02-23-1996 revised through 02-01-2025 by 
Gardner & Peterson Associates LLC. Ellington Inland Wetlands placards shall be securely 
attached to the fence posts in three locations evenly spaced and facing the house. 

5. North Central District Health Department well location plan approval dated March 10, 2025.  
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: None 
 
V. NEW BUSINESS:  

 
1. MOVED (HEMINWAY) SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED (BRAGA OPPOSED) TO ADD TO 

THE AGENDA A REQUEST FOR A MODIFICATION TO PERMIT IW202419 – Abdulsalam 
Alsaleh and Zak Smith, owner/ Calito Development Group, LLC, applicant, request for a permit to 
conduct regulated activity to construct a driveway crossing, parking lot, wetlands mitigation area, 
stormwater basin, and associated site improvements for a retail store on property to be subdivided 
on the west side of West Road across the street from 175 West Road. Property identified as 
Assessor Parcel Number 046-003-0002. 
 
Jim Cassidy, PE, Hallisey, Pearson & Cassidy Engineering Associates, Inc., 630 Main Street, 
Cromwell, CT stated the Inland Wetland Agency granted a Wetlands permit on November 18, 
2024. Since the approval, Jim has been working with the Connecticut Department of 
Transportation (CT DOT) for the last few months to obtain approval for the proposed site 
improvements.  The CT DOT has concerns pertaining to the proposed detention basin along West 
Road and requested a revised plan to review.  Jim shared the revised site plan, and the changes 
made to accommodate the CT DOT concerns.  After a brief roundtable discussion, the Agency 
advised Jim Cassidy to attend the next meeting under New Business agenda item.  

 



Ellington Inland Wetland Agency 
2025_03-17 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 
 

MOVED (HEMINWAY) SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADD UNDER 
NEW BUSINESS FOR MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN 
STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING A REQUEST FOR A 
MODIFICATION TO PERMIT IW202419 – Abdulsalam Alsaleh and Zak Smith, owner/ Calito 
Development Group, LLC, applicant, request for a permit to conduct regulated activity to construct 
a driveway crossing, parking lot, wetlands mitigation area, stormwater basin, and associated site 
improvements for a retail store on property to be subdivided on the west side of West Road across 
the street from 175 West Road. Property identified as Assessor Parcel Number 046-003-0002. 

 
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of February 10, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
MOVED (BRAGA) SECONDED (HEMINWAY) (ROY - ABSTAINED) AND PASSED TO 
APPROVE FEBRUARY 10, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 
 

2. Election of Officers 
 
BY CONSENSUS, THE AGENCY TABLED ELECTION OF OFFICERS TO THE NEXT INLAND 
WETLAND AGENCY MEETING TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025, 7PM, TOWN 
HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING. 
 

3. Correspondence/Discussion: 
 
a. CT DEEP Municipal Inland Wetlands Agency Comprehensive Training Program. 
b. North Central Conservation District Spring 2025 Plant & Seedling Sale. 
c. Notice of Ellington Public Budget Presentations - Community Voice Channel on March 20, 

2025, Senior Center and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 1, 2025, and Hall Memorial Library 
and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 3, 2025. 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT:   

 
MOVED (BRAGA) SECONDED (HEMINWAY) TO ADJOURN THE MARCH 17, 2025, REGULAR 
MEETING OF THE INLAND WETLANDS AGENCY AT 8:03 PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 


	Join Zoom Meeting via link  Join Zoom Meeting by phone:
	2025_04-15 Memo Forest Road Improvement.pdf
	To: John Colonese, Asst. Town Planner
	From: Tom Modzelewski, Director of Public Works
	cc: Lisa Houlihan, Town Planner
	      Lori Spielman, First Selectman
	      Matt Reed, Town Administrator
	Date: 4-15-2025
	Re: Kibbe Rd State Forest Access Road Improvements

	2015_05-08 Site Plans - Previously Approved.pdf
	Image_20200511_0001
	Image_20200511_0002
	Image_20200511_0003
	Image_20200511_0004




